IN THE MATTER OF:

MYCASHNOW, INC d/b/a
MYCASHNOW.COM,

PAYDAYMAX LTD. d/b/a
PAYDAYMAX.COM,

DISCOUNTADVANCES.COM a/k/a
IGOTIT.COM, INC,

CREDIT PAYMENT SERVICES, INC.,
CREDIT PROTECTION DEPOT, INC,,
and

CAREY V. BROWN,

Respondents.

BEFORE THE MARYLAND
COMMISSIONER OF
FINANCIAL REGULATION

and

THE MARYLAND STATE
COLLECTION AGENCY
LICENSING BOARD IN THE
OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER
OF FINANCIAL REGULATION

Case No.: CFR-FY2011-134

IMPLEMENTATION AGREEMENT

. 414
This Implementation Agreement is entered into this 34 day of May, 2014, by and

between the Maryland Commissioner of Financial Regulation (the “Commissioner”) and the

Maryland State Collection Agency Licensing Board (“MCALB”) in the Office of the

Commissioner of Financial Regulation, (collectively, the “Agency"), and MyCashNow, Inc.

d/b/a MyCashNow.com (“MCN”), PayDayMax Ltd. d/b/a PayDayMax.com (“PDM”),

DiscountAdvances.com a/k/a [Gotlt.com, Inc. (“PDM?”), Credit Payment Services, Inc. (“CPS”),

Credit Protection Depot, Inc. (“CPD”), and Carey V. Brown (collectively, the “Respondents”).

The Agency and Respondents (the “Parties”) consent to the entry of this Implementation

Agreement (the “Agreement”) as a final resolution of this matter. All paragraphs below are
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intended to be part of the contractual obligations of the Parties hereto, so far as they may be so
construed, and are not mere recitals to this Agreement.

1. Pursuant to the Maryland Consumer Loan Law (“MCLL”), at Md. Code Ann.,
Com. Law (“CL”) § 12-301 ef seq. and Fin. Inst. (“FI”) § 11-201 ef seq., the Commissioner is
responsible for licensing and regulating persons who make consumer loans to residents of the
State of Maryland (the “State”).

2. Pursuant to FI § 11-204, “[u]nless a person is licensed by the Commissioner, the
person may not: (1) [m]ake a loan; or (2) [i]n any way use any advantage provided by the
Maryland Consumer Loan Law.”

3. Pursuant to CL § 12-302, a “person may not engage in the business of making
loans under this subtitle unless the person is licensed under or is exempt from the licensing
requirements of Title 11, Subtitle 2 of the Financial Institutions Article, Annotated Code of
Maryland, known as the Maryland Consumer Loan Law — Licensing Provisions.”

4. CL § 12-306 specifies the maximum interest rates which a lender is permitted to
charge on a loan under Title 12, Subtitle 3 of the Commercial Law Article. Section 12-
306(a)(6)(i) provides as follows: “[f]or any loan with an original principal balance of $2,000 or
less, 2.75 percent interest per month on that part of the unpaid balance not more than $1,000 and
2 percent interest per month on that part of the unpaid principal balance that is more than
$1,000.” This section, therefore, permits a lender to charge a maximum annual interest rate of 33
percent on unpaid principal balances up to $1,000, and 24 percent on unpaid principal balances
over $1,000. Section 12-306(a)(6)(ii) provides: “[flor any loan with an original principal

balance of more than $2,000, the maximum rate of interest is 2 percent per month on the unpaid
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principal balance of the loan.” This section only permits a lender to charge a maximum annual
interest rate of 24 percent on the unpaid principal balance of the loan.

5. Pursuant to CL § 12-313(a)(1), a lender may not “[d]irectly or indirectly contract
for, charge, or receive any interest, discount, fee, fine, commission, charge, brokerage, or other
consideration in excess of that permitted by this subtitle.”

6. Pursuant to Maryland’s Consumer Credit Reporting Agencies Law (“CCRAL”),
at CL § 14-1201 et seq., the Commissioner is responsible for enforcing laws regulating consumer
credit reporting. Notably, CL §§ 14-1217 and 14-1218 provide that the Commissioner has
authority to conduct investigations, hold hearings, issue orders, promulgate regulations, and
otherwise enforce the provisions of the CCRAL as well as other laws regulating consumer credit
reporting.

7. Pursuant to the Maryland Collection Agency Licensing Act (“MCALA™), at Md.
Code Ann., Bus. Reg. (“BR”) § 7-101 e seq., the Agency is responsible for licensing and
regulating persons engaged in collection agency activities in the State of Maryland (the “State™).

8. The definition of “collection agency” under BR § 7-101(c) includes, among other
things, “a person who engages directly or indirectly in the business of: (1) (i) collecting for, or
soliciting from another, a consumer claim; or (ii) collecting a consumer claim the person owns, if
the claim was in default when the person acquired it.”

9. BR § 7-401(a) provides that, “except as otherwise provided in this title, a person
may not knowingly and willfully do business as a collection agency in the State unless the person
has a license.”

10. A non-exempt person who acquires consumer claims in default at the time of

acquisition (a “consumer debt purchaser”), who then attempts to collect on those debts through
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litigation in Maryland State courts, is conducting business as a “collection agency” in the State
under BR § 7-101(c). This applies regardless of whether the consumer debt purchaser is
represented in litigation by attorneys who are also licensed as collection agencies. As such, a
consumer debt purchaser collecting debts through litigation in Maryland State courts is required
to be licensed as a collection agency under MCALA, and is subject to the regulatory authority of
the Agency in the conduct of that litigation.

11. A consumer debt purchaser collecting debts through litigation in Maryland State
courts also meets the definitions of “collector” under Md. Code Ann., Com. Law (“CL”) § 14-
201(b) of the Maryland Consumer Debt Collection Act (“MCDCA”), at CL § 14-201 ef seq., and
of “debt collector” under 15 U.S.C. § 1692(a) of the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act
(“FDCPA”), at 15 U.S.C. § 1692 et seq.

12.  Pursuant to CL § 14-202(8) of the MCDCA, “[i]n collecting or attempting to
collect an alleged debt,” a debt collector (or “collector”) may not “[c]laim, attempt, or threaten to
enforce a right with knowledge that the right does not exist.”

13. The FDCPA provides, in relevant part, as follows:

§ 1692e. False or misleading representations

A debt collector may not use any false, deceptive, or misleading
representation or means in connection with the collection of any
debt. Without limiting the general application of the foregoing, the
following conduct is a violation of this section:

H*sksk

(2)  The false representation of—

(A)  the character, amount, or legal status of any debt; or
seskesk
(5)  The threat to take any action that cannot legally be taken or
that is not intended to be taken.
kskok
(10) The use of any false representation or deceptive means to

collect or attempt to collect any debt or to obtain information
concerning a consumer.
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§ 1692f. Unfair practices

A debt collector may not use unfair or unconscionable means to
collect or attempt to collect any debt. Without limiting the general
application of the foregoing, the following conduct is a violation of
this section:

(1)  The collection of any amount (including any interest, fee,
charge, or expense incidental to the principal obligation) unless
such amount is expressly authorized by the agreement creating the
debt or permitted by law.

e s sk

14.  Thus, the Agency has the authority to bring actions under MCALA against
persons engaged in various prohibited activities in connection with the collection of any
consumer claim, including for violations of the FDCPA pursuant to BR § 7-308(a)(3)(ii)
(engaging in illegal activities), and for violations of the MCDCA pursuant to BR §§ 7-
308(a)(3)(ii) and 7-308(a)(4). Such authority extends to both litigation-related collection
activities, as well as to non-litigation (i.e., “traditional”) collection activities. Further, pursuant
to BR § 7-205 and Md. Code Ann., Fin. Inst. (“FI”’) § 2-115(b), such enforcement actions could
result in an order to cease and desist, suspension or revocation of Maryland State collection
agency licenses, civil money penalties for each violation of CCRAL, MCALA, the MCDCA, and
FDCPA (as violations of MCALA), an order to provide restitution to affected Maryland
consumers or to take other affirmative action to correct the violations, or any combination of the
aforementioned sanctions.

15.  On July 29, 2013, the Agency issued a Summary Order to Cease and Desist and
Order to Produce against Respondents (the “Summary Order”) after finding reasonable grounds
to believe that the Respondents had engaged in unlicensed consumer lending, unlicensed
collection agency activities and other violations of the MCLL and MCALA, and were violating

the provisions of the MCDCA and the FDCPA referenced above, (collectively the "Alleged
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Violations"), and upon determining that action under FI § 2-115 and Md. Code Ann., State Gov’t
(“SG”) § 10-226(c)2), was appropriate.

16.  The Summary Order notified Respondents of, among other things, the following:
that the Respondents were entitled to a hearing before the Agency to determine whether the
Summary Order should be vacated, modified, or entered as a final order of the Agency; that the
Summary Order would be entered as a final order if Respondents did not request a hearing within
15 days of receipt of the Summary Order; and that as a result of a hearing, or of Respondents’
failure to request a hearing, the Agency may, in the Agency’s discretion and in addition to taking
any other action authorized by law, enter an order making the Summary Order final, issue
penalty orders against Respondents, issue orders requiring Respondents to pay restitution and
other money to consumers, as well as take other actions related to Respondents’ business
activities.

17. The Summary Order was properly served on Respondents via First Class U.S.
Mail and Certified U.S. Mail, but Respondents failed to request a hearing on the Summary Order
within the fifteen (15) day period set forth in FI §§ 2-115(a)(2) and 11-215(b) and BR § 7-309 or
pursuant to SG § 10-226(c)(2).

18. On September 17, 2013, the Agency issued a Final Order to Cease and Desist
(the “Final Order”) determining the following: Respondents had engaged in unlicensed consumer
lending, unlicensed collection agency activities and other violations of the MCLL and MCALA,
and were violating the provisions of the MCDCA and the FDCPA referenced above; the loans
which Respondents made to Maryland Consumers involved usurious rates of interest, far in
excess of the 24% or 33% annual interest rates permitted for these transactions under CL §12-

306(a)(6); Respondents’ loans to all Maryland consumers are illegal and unenforceable and
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Respondents may not receive or retain any principal, interest, or other compensation with respect
to any loan made to a Maryland consumer; and that any adverse or negative information
pertaining to these loans should not be reflected on the credit reports of Maryland consumers for
any reason, including, but not limited to for reasons of nonpayment or default. This Final Order
is at Attachment 1.

19. This Agreement is intended to resolve all administrative, judicial, or other legal
actions between the Parties, as well as any such action which the Agency brought, or could have
brought, against Respondents or Respondents’ predecessors, successors, subsidiaries, affiliates,
parents, shareholders, current or former directors, officers, or employees prior to the execution of
this Agreement, relating to those issues and pending collection matters which formed the basis
for the Summary Order and the Final Order. However, it is not intended to supersede or replace
the Final Order, the terms of which remain in full force and effect.

20. The Agency desires to ensure that Respondents will comply with all terms of the
Final Order and all applicable statutes, regulations, and other laws governing collection agency
activities in the State of Maryland, including complying with the MCLL, MCALA, the MCDCA,
and the FDCPA, and further wishes to avoid the costs to the taxpayers of any potential appeals
and subsequent collections actions.

21.  Neither this Agreement nor the agreement of the Respondents to make payments
to the Agency or to provide restitution as set forth below shall be construed as an admission of
liability by the Respondents, but is in compromise and settlement of the Alleged Violations. As
such, and notwithstanding any other language in this Agreement, it is a settlement of all claims
contained in the Final Order against all of the Respondents. The Respondents expressly deny

any such liability or wrongdoing.
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22. Respondents represent that, to the best of their knowledge, information, and
belief, as of the date of this Agreement they are in compliance with the MCLL, the MCDCA, the
FDCPA, MCALA, and all other provisions of Maryland law governing consumer lending and
consumer debt collection. Respondents represent that they have not made any loans to any
resident of Maryland since the issuance of the Final Order.

23. Respondents have agreed to take each and every one of the following actions in
exchange for a final resolution of this matter:

a. Respondents will permanently CEASE and DESIST from the following:
(1) making unlicensed consumer, installment, or any other loans to any resident of Maryland; (2)
collecting or attempting to collect, directly or indirectly, on any loans previously made to any
resident of Maryland; (3) referring any loan accounts involving residents of Maryland to third
party collection agencies or selling or assigning any such loan accounts; (4) reporting any
negative or adverse information to credit reporting agencies concerning any loan transaction
which Respondents entered into with any resident of Maryland; (5) engaging directly or
indirectly in the collection of consumer claims from Maryland residents and from otherwise
engaging in the collection agency business in the State of Maryland; and (6) violating the various
Maryland statutory provisions referenced in the Final Order.

b. Respondents will take affirmative action to prevent any third party
collection agencies to which Respondents previously referred loan accounts involving residents
of Maryland from reporting any negative or adverse information to credit reporting agencies.

c. Respondents will pay to the Agency a total civil money penalty in the
amount of $214,500 (TWO HUNDRED FOURTEEN THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED

DOLLARS), as detailed in the Final Order. Respondents shall pay to the Agency, by cashier’s
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or certified check made payable to the “Commissioner of Financial Regulation,” the amount of
$214,500 within fifteen (15) days from the date of the execution of this Agreement.

d. Respondents will deem all agreements which Respondents entered into
with Maryland residents to be void and unenforceable pursuant to CL §12-314(b)(1) and (2).

e. Respondents agree to cancel, forgive, discharge, release, and reduce to a
zero balance, the total amount of all unpaid money which the Respondents might allege is due
the Respondents from Maryland residents to whom the Respondents made any loans, and the
Respondents agree that they will not sell, assign, or otherwise transfer any such unpaid accounts
receivable to any third party, nor will Respondents attempt to collect on those unpaid accounts,
directly or indirectly.

f. Respondents also agree that, from and after the date that this Agreement is
fully executed, to the extent the Respondents receive any payment from a Maryland resident to
whom the Respondents had previously made a loan, the Respondents shall forthwith refund such
payment directly to the Maryland resident from whom such payment was received and notify the
Agency.

g. Respondents will not retain any principal, interest, or other compensation
from loan agreements entered into with those consumers identified on Attachment A to the Final
Order (hereinafter, the “Maryland Consumers”), and therefore will issue full refunds of all sums
collected from the Maryland Consumers as of the date this Agreement is fully executed.

h. Respondents shall issue refunds to the affected Maryland Consumers
indicated in Paragraph 23.g. above, in accordance with the following:

(1).  On or before June 13, 2014, Respondents shall mail a check for the

amount of money to be refunded to each Maryland Consumer via First Class U.S. Malil, to each
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affected consumer’s last known address, or to an updated address as can be identified through
customary address verification means. Each refund shall be accompanied by a letter indicating
that that the refund is being issued pursuant to a Settlement Agreement between the Respondents
and the Commissioner of Financial Regulation, and that the Settlement Agreement does not in
any way affect the consumer’s legal rights. The text of this letter shall be pre-approved by the
Agency.

(2).  On or before August 15, 2014, the Respondents shall furnish
evidence to the Agency that refunds were tendered to each Maryland Consumer in the agreed
amount by providing a copy of the front and back of the cancelled check for each refund
payment that was negotiated by the affected consumer.

(3).  On or before August 31, 2014, if any refund payment checks
mailed by the Respondents to Maryland Consumers in accordance with this Agreement are either
not cashed or are returned to the Respondents as non-deliverable (collectively, the
“Undeliverable Refunds™), such Undeliverable Refunds will escheat to the State of Maryland. In
such event, the Respondents will stop payment on such undeliverable refund payment checks,
and shall pay the total amount of all Undeliverable Refunds in the form of a single check made
payable to the “Comptroller of Maryland,” which shall be submitted to Rebecca Coleman,
Assistant Attorney General, Office of the Attorney General, Department of Labor Licensing and
Regulation, 500 N. Calvert Street, Suite 406, Baltimore, Maryland, 21202, copy to the Agency,
both of which shall be accompanied by a spreadsheet which shall be submitted in both hard copy
and in an electronic format mutually agreeable to both Parties, and which shall contain the
following information for each Maryland Consumer: the social security number of the consumer

(if known), the date of birth of the consumer (if known), the date on which each refund check
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was mailed, and an indication of which refund checks were cashed, and which refund checks
were either not cashed or were returned to the Respondents as non-deliverable. Such action on
the part of the Respondents shall relieve the Respondents of any further obligation to make
refunds to the Maryland Consumers pursuant to this Agreement.

(4).  The Respondents shall not seek releases from consumers in
conjunction with these refunds.

L. Within seven (7) days from the execution of this Agreement, Respondents
shall deposit the sum of Sixty Thousand Dollars and No/100 ($60,000) in a non-interest bearing
client trust account at the law firm of Husch Blackwell (the “Escrow Funds™), which are intended
to provide restitution to additional Maryland residents who entered into loan agreements with
Respondents, as follows:

(1).  After execution of this Agreement, upon the Commissioner’s
receipt of any additional complaints from Maryland residents who had entered into a loan
agreement with the Respondents, other than from the Maryland Consumers identified in
Attachment A to the Final Order, the Commissioner shall determine whether the Maryland
resident has submitted sufficient proof of such Agreement and payments to the Respondents,
thereby entitling them to a refund from the Escrow Funds in the amount of such money paid to
the Respondents. If the Commissioner determines that the Maryland resident is entitled to a
refund, the Commissioner shall notify Donna Faulkner at Husch Blackwell by email at
donna.faulkner@huschblackwell.com of the complaint and provide sufficient information to
allow a check (in an amount designated by the Commissioner) to be issued to the complaining
Maryland resident. Within seven (7) days of receipt of such a notice from the Commissioner, a

check shall be issued out of the Escrow Funds, payable to the complaining Maryland resident,
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and sent by certified US Mail to the address provided by the Commissioner. A copy of the check
shall simultaneously be sent by email to the Commissioner at rebecca.coleman@maryland.gov.

(2).  Such refunds shall be available to Maryland residents who file a
complaint with the Agency on or before July 31, 2014, containing sufficient proof that they are
entitled to a refund, with the following caveats: if and when the Escrow Funds become fully
depleted, no further refunds will be issued to Maryland residents; complaints will be prioritized
based on the date received.

(3).  On October 1, 2014, Respondents shall stop payment on any
uncashed checks which had been issued out of the Escrow Funds. Any remaining Escrow Funds
shall be distributed as follows: first, Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars and No/100 ($25,000) or
any lesser amount remaining to CPS (the “CPS Payment”); next, to the extent any Escrow Funds
remain after the CPS Payment, the entire remaining balance of the Escrow Funds shall be paid
to the Agency by means of a check drawn payable to the “Commissioner of Financial
Regulation,” which shall be submitted to Rebecca Coleman, Assistant Attorney General, Office
of the Attorney General, Department of Labor Licensing and Regulation, 500 N. Calvert Street,
Suite 406, Baltimore, Maryland, 21202.

(4).  Inno event shall the Agency or the State of Maryland be liable for
any costs associated with creating, maintaining, or administering the client trust account
associated with the Escrow Funds.

24. Respondents acknowledge that they have voluntarily entered into this Agreement,
that they have had an opportunity to consult with independent legal counsel in connection with
the negotiation and execution of this Agreement, and that they have in fact consulted with

independent legal counsel.

EAST\74669256.8 12



25. The Parties hereto agree that this Agreement shall be binding upon all Parties and
enforceable in a court of competent jurisdiction by the Agency and by Respondents, shall be
admissible in court, if relevant, and shall be binding upon and inure to any of the Respondents'
present and future owners, principals, directors, officers, members, partners, managers,
successors, and assigns.

26. The Parties hereto acknowledge that this Agreement does not in any way relate to,
impact, or otherwise affect the legal rights of, or preclude the Agency from bringing actions
against, persons not Parties to this Agreement, except as set forth in Paragraph 27, below.

27. The Agency fully and finally releases, acquits, and forever discharges
Respondents, as well as Respondents’ predecessors, successors, subsidiaries, affiliates, parents,
shareholders, current or former directors, officers, and employees, from any claim, action, suit,
or proceeding, whether civil or administrative, the Agency has for conduct occurring prior to the
date that this Agreement is fully executed which relates to the subject matter of the Alleged
Violations set forth in the Summary Order and Final Order.

28. The Parties agree that they shall not disparage or otherwise undermine this
Agreement in any way.

29. The Parties hereto agree that any notices hereunder shall be effectively delivered

when sent via overnight delivery or certified mail as follows:

a. To the Agency:

Commissioner of Financial Regulation

500 North Calvert Street, Suite 402

Baltimore, Maryland 21202-3651

Attention: Gordon M. Cooley, Deputy Commissioner

Copy to:

Rebecca J. Coleman, Assistant Attorney General
Department of Labor, Licensing, and Regulation
500 North Calvert Street, Suite 406
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Baltimore, Maryland 21202-3651

b. To the Respondents:

Robert C. Douglas, Esquire

DLA Piper LLP

The Marbury Building

6225 Smith Avenue

Baltimore, Maryland 21209-3600

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Implementation Agreement is executed on the day and

year first above written.

MARYLAND COMMISSIONER OF
FINANCIAL REGULATION

and

MARYLAND STATE COLLECTION
AGENCY LICENSING BOARD IN THE
OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER OF
FINANCIAL REGULATION

7 /M: -

éj}i:"‘Mark Kaufman
Commissioner of Financial Regulation
Chairperson, State Collection Agency
Licensing Board

By:
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MYCASHNOW, INC. d/b/a
MYCASHNOW.COM,

PAYDAYMAX LTD. d/b/a
PAYDAYMAX.COM,

DISCOUNTADVANCES.COM a/k/a
IGOTIT.COM, INC.,

CREDIT PAYMENT SERVICES, INC.,

CREDIT PROTECTION DEPOT, INC.,

CA YV BROWN*\)
T m\j \\/ %\Bj\jﬁm&hb

Carey V. Brown,
Individually, and On Behalf of
All Respondent Business Entities




INTHE MATTER OF: BEFORE THE MARYLAND
. - COMMISSIONER OF
MYCASHNOW, INC. d/b/a FINANCIAL REGULATION
MYCASHNOW.COM
and
PAYDAYMAX LLD. d/b/a 7
PAYDAYMAX.COM THE MARYLAND STATE
COLLECTION AGENCY
DISCOUNTADVANCES.COM a/k/a LACENSING BOARD IN THE

, . OFFICE OF THE
Al ! T i
IGOTIT.COM. INC. COMMISSIONER OF

o ) ) ) FINANCIAL REGULATION
CREDIT PAYMEN1 SERVICES, INC.
CREDIT PROTECTION DEPOT, INC.

and Case No.: CFR-FY2011-134

CAREY . BROWN

Respondents.

FINAL ORDER TO CEASE AND DESIST

WHEREAS. the Office of the Commissioner of Financial Regulaton. a unit in the
Department of Labor, Licensing and Regulation. a principal department of the Staie of Maryiand
(the “Commissioner”™ or *OCFR™1 undertook an mvestigaiion into the business activities of
MyCashNow, Inc.. dba MyvCashNow .com (together "MUNT). PayvDavMax. Lid. dhag
PayDayvMax.com (together "PDM™ ). DiscounivAdvances.com ak/a IGotltcom. Inc. (together
"DASNT). Credit Payvment Services. Inc.. (“CPS™). Credit Protection Depot. Ine. ("CPD™ and
Carey V. Brown. {collectively. the "Respondents™): and

WHEREAS. as a result of that investigation. the Commissioner finds grounds to allege
that Respondents violated various provisions of the Annotated Code of Mary land (the ~“Code™ ).
mcluding Commercial Law Article (CL™) Title 12, Subtitle 3 and Financial Institutions Article

AM RIS REGFINAL ORI C&D
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R Tidde 110 Subutde 20 ¢collectively e "Maryland Consumer Loan Law™ or “MCLL"). and
the Commisstoner (inds that acton under F P98 2-114 and 2-115 is appropriate: and

WHEREAS. pursuam 1o the Marvland Collection Agency L leensing Acl ¢"MOALA™

Business Regulations Article ("BR™. $7-101 o seg. of the Code, the Stae Collection Agencs
Licensing Board (the “Board ™1 1« responsible for licensing and regulating persons eny saged in

collection agency activities in the State of Marvland (the "State™). and for otherwise enforemg
the provisions of MCALA and the M tarviand Consumer Debt Collection Act {"MODCAT
Jocated at CL §14-201 e1 seq.. of the Code: and

WHEREAS. the Board finds grounds 1o alle ege that Respondents have engaged m acts or
practices which constitute violanons of MOAL A and MCODCAL and the Board finds thai acuon
un;h:r FFS2-115 05 appropriate: and

WHEREAS.  the Commussioner and  the Board  (together  the CAgency
issued & Summary Order 10 Cease and Desist and Order 10 Produce (the “Summary Order™
against Respondents on Julv 29 2013, atier determining that Respondems were 11 violation of
the aforemenuoned provisions of Marviand faw. and that it was in the public interest thar
Respondents cease and desist from making any further loans 1o Marvland consumers: from
colecting directly or indirectly through third party collecton agencies or law firms. on any iuan
previously made to Marviand consumers: {rom engaging directly or indirectly m the business of
collecting consumer claims from Marviand consumers: and from otherwise engaging in the
collection agency and debt eollection business in the State: and

WHEREAS. the Summary Order notified Respondents of. among other things, the
following: that Respondents were entitled to a hearing before the Agency 1o determine whether

the Summary Order should be vacated. modified. or entered as a final order of the
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Commussioner: that the summary Order would be entered as 4 final order if Respondents did not

request a hearing within 15 davs of the recerpt of the Summany Order: and that as a result of 4
hearng. or of Respondents™ failure o request a hearing, the Agency mas. i the Agency’s

discretion and in addition to taking any other uction authorized by law, enter an order making the

oy

Swnmary Order final, issue penalty  orders against Respondents. issue orders reguiring

Respondents 1o pay restiwtion and other money 16 consuwmers. as well as take other acuons

related 1o Respondents” business activities: and

WHEREAS. the Summary Order was properiyv served on Respondents via First (lass

US. Mail and Certified U.S. Mail: and
WHEREAS. Respondenis failed (o request a hearmg on the summany Order within the

fifteens (137 day perod set forth in £ 88 2-115tan2) and 11-215¢h). BR §7-309 or pursuanm 1o

State Government Article $10-226(¢)2) of the Code. and have not filed 2 request for a hearing

as of the date o this Final Order 1o Cease and Desist (this “Final Order™); and
WHEREAS. the OCFR began an investigation ino the Respondents™ business activities

as a result of a series of consumer complaints and has based its decision in this Final Order that
Respondents engaged in unlicensed and predatory  business pr&ctices i violation of various
provisions of I\-iaryl’and law. including but not limited 10 violation of the MCLL. MCALA and
the MCDCAL on the following determinations:

t. Pursuant 1o FI §11-204, “Julnless a person as licensed by the Commissioner. the
person may not: (1) [mlake a loan: or (2) [Ljn any way use any advantage provided by the

Marvland Consumer Loan Law ™

[

Pursuant 1o CL §12-302, a “person may nol engage in the business of making

loans under this subtitle unless the person 15 hicensed under or is exempl trom the licensing

AMOSCTR TN AL ORDERS CRDMyC ashNow RO C&D-a011.134
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requirements of Title 11, Subuitie 2 of the Financial Institutions Aricle Annotated Code of

Marvland. known as the Marviand Consumer Loan Law - Licensing Provisions,”

3 Pursuant to CL §12-301(¢). a “fender”™ means s person who makes a loan under
{Title 12, Subtitle 3 of the Commercial Law, Arucle] ™
4, Pursuant 10 CL §12-301en a “loan™ “means any loan or advance of money or

credit made under [Title 12, Subtitle 3 of the Commercial 1aw Article].”
Pursuant to CL 812303 - “fa] lender mav not make a loan under this subtiy te
unless the joan 1s in an original azmauxﬂ or value which does not exceed $6.000

f CL$12-306 specities the maxmmum terest rates which a lender 15 permitied 1o
charge on a loan under Title 12, Subtitle 3 of the Commercial Law Arucle.

a. Secuon 12-300(a)6 1 i) provides as follows: “For any loan with an original
principal balance of $2.000 or less. 2.75 percent interest per month on that part of the unpaig
balance noi more than $1.000.7 Therefore. this section permits a lender 1o charge a maximun
annual mterest rate of 33 pereent on unpaid principal balances up o $1.000. and 24 percent on
unpaid balances over $1.001
b Section 12-306(a)6)(i1) provides; “For any loan with an original principal
balauce of more than $2.000. the maximum rare of interest is 2 percent per month on the unpaid
principal balance of the loa.n.”‘ This section permins a lender 1o charge a maximum annual
interest rate of 24 percent on the unpaid principal balance of the loan.

pe

nterest on unpaid foan balances. refinanced loans. and computation of interest are

~d
Pt

discussed in CL §§12-306(h) through (d). which state the following respectively:

by Intercst on balance unpaid atrer or reinal maturin: dare.
If any principal balance remains unpaid 6 months after the loan matures as
origmally scheduled or deferred. the fender may not contract for. char

ge.
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OF recerve interest al a rate exceeding 6 percent simple interest per annum
on the actual unpaid principal balances from time (o time.
(cy Refinanced loan. If the lender refinances a loan in the ordinary course
of business. he may not add 10 the principal balance or deduct from the
proceeds of the new loan more than 60 davs’ interest then due.
(di ‘um,ﬂzuarim7 of inreres:.
1y The fender shall compute interest on the aciual unpaid principal
‘miﬂ ances outstanding from time to ume. and he may not contract for,
J‘; arge. or recerved teresi in advance or compounded interest.
) For each day on which an unpaid principal balance is outstanding.
1m lender may charge on that unpaid balance 130%™ of the interest
permitted under this subtitle tw be charged for 1 month,

8. CL §12-307(b) provides that “lal Jender may collect from the borrower a fee not
exceeding 515 if pavment is made with a check that is dishonored on the second presentment.”
9 CLOSIZ-308 sets forth varous duties that lenders have toward borrowers.
ncludmg but not limited 1o, the dury 1w provide a statement contaiming specific language and
provisions at the tme the loan is made (CL S12-308t2). the duty 1o provide rece eipls Tor

payments (C1 §12-308(h)1. the obligation w permil prepavment of the loan. in full or in part

without penatty (CL §12-308(¢)). the duty 1o provide specific documents afier full repayvment of
the foan (CL §12-308(d)). and the duty 10 provide & written statement of the account u;)fm

request from the borrower (CL §12-308(e)).

10 Pursuant to CL §12-313tan 1. a lender may not “[djirect)y or indirecthy contract

for. charge. or receive any interest. discount. fee. {ine, commission. charge. brokerage. or other
consideration in excess of that permitied by this subtitle. *
(BN CL §12-314 provides in relevant part. as follows:

ta) Prohibited. A person may not lend $6.000 or less if the person directly
or indirectly contracts for. or receives a greater rate of mterest. charge.
discount. or other consideration than that authorized by the laws of this
State.

tb) Loans unenforceabie. exceplions.
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(11 A loan made in the amount of $6.000 or less. whether or not the
loan is or purports 1o be made under this subtitle e, 1s unenforceable if a
rate of imterest. charged. discount or other consideration greater than
that authorized by the laws of this State is contracied for by any person
unless the excess rate conwacted for is the resuli of 4 clerical erroy or
mistake and the person corrects the error or mistake before am
pavment 1s received under the loan.

(2} The persort who 1s neither a licensee nor exe mpt from licensing
May not recetve or retain any principal. imterest or other compensation
with respect (o any loan that is unenforceahle under this subsection.

o4 u

[#4
Joan wansaction validly made in another state in compliance with a similar

loan taw of that state. However. 4 lender may not collect an amount that 15
more than the total amount that would be permitied if this subtitle were
apphicable. This section applies to all loans made by a3 lender domiciled in
another state 1o a borrower who 1s a resident of this State if the applicaton
for the loan originated in this State.

(ct Transaciions made in another stare. This section does | not apply to a

12, Pursuant to CL §12-315. the provisions of Title 12, Subtitle 3 “shall be interprered
and construed to effectuate its genera) remedial purpose.”

13 The Commissioner’s investigatory powers under the MCLL are found in FI §71]-
~14 which generally identifies persoms subject 1o mvestigation ($11-214a)1. access and
exanmination under oath (§11-214(b ).

14, Pursuant to Marviand's Consumer Credi Reporting Agencies Law ("CCRAL" at
CL §14-1201 ¢ seg. ). the Commissioner is responsible for enforcing laws re egulating consumer
credit reporting. CL §814-1217 and 14-121% provide that the Commissioner has authorny (w
conduct mvestigations. hold hearing, issue order. promulpate regulations. and otherwise enforce

the provisions of the CCRAL as well as other laws regulating consumer crediy reporting.,

is Pursuant to CL §14-121

[

- a person who furnishes information to a consumer

reporting agency’ is required within 3U days of discov ermg that the\ are not in compliance with
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consumer credit reporting laws. 0 noufy the o 10 make

whatever adjustments are necessars o correct the noncomphiance ™

6. The Fair Credit Reporting Act ("FORA™, 15 U'S.(° STORL er wey.) imposes

speeilic responsibilities on persons who {urnish mtormation © consumer reporing agencies

(CCRAsT 8623151 .8.C §1681s-21 This includes the duty 1o report infonmation accurately to

CRAS (8623cai 1y, as well as the duty 10 correct and update information previousiyv reported

(O6253tan 2y, In particular, §625%a i) requirey @ person that “has {urmished 1o g CONSUmer

reporimg agency information that the person delermines 15 not complete or accurate” 1o

Tprompth notify the consumes reporung agency ot that determmation” and provide am
P h A 5 dL . \

information needed o make it cor nplete and accurate.

~ s
i’. Dy a7

BR Q7T provides. in part. the following definitions:

(b} Board. “Board™ means the State Collection Ageney Licensing Board,
(cv Collection ugency. ~Collection agency” means a person who en gaged

dir t}\ or indirectly in the business of>
(11 (11 collecting for. or soliciting from another. a consumer claim: or
(nt collecting a consumer claim the person owns. if the claim was
in default when the person acquired it
F ok
(dy Commissioner, “Commissioner” means the Commissic oner ot Financial
Regulation.

]

tdy Conswner claim. ~Consumer claim™ means thar:

(1115 for money owed or said to be owed by a resident of the State.
and

(1) arises from a transaction i which, for a family. household. or
personal purpose. the resident sought ar zot credit. mones. personal
property. real property, or service.

License “License” means a license issued by the Board to do business
as collection agency.

—
o

(6 Licensed colleciion agency, “Licensed collection agency’ means a
person who is licensed by the Board to do business as a collection
agency.
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1y Pursuant 10 BR £7-201. “[i]here is 4 State Collection Agency Licensing

Board n the Office of the Commussioner of Financial Regalation m the Depanment [of Labor.

Licensing. and Regulation] ™ Furiher, BR & & provides that. “ftlhe Commissioner iy chairman

of the Board.”

1o BR §7-401ta) provides that. Cexcept as otherwise provided in this e, » person

may notknowmgly and willfulls do business as g ¢ ollection agency in the State unless the person
bas o hecense.”

20, Pursuant to the Marviand Consumer Debt Collection Act "MODCA™ (L 8] 4

. \ -
201 e seq .t and specificalls . at 1 §14-202 “Nin collecting or attem ung w c,ol ect an alleged
- ] 3 33 P £

debt o collector may not™ “fellaim. aliempt. ot threaten o enforee @ right with knowledee that

o

the right does pot exist.™ (814-207(8 )

21 Fair Debt Collections Practices Act CEDOPA™Y at 15 1US.C 8169 of e

provided. in relevant part as follaws:

§1692e. False or misleading representations
A debt collector mav not use any false. deceptive. or misleading
representation or means in connecton with the collection of any debt.

Without limiting the general application of the foregoing. the i mimww

conduct is a violation of this section:
I

(2') The false representation of -
A} the character. amount, or legal status of any debt; or

(5} The threat 10 take anv action that cannot le cpaltly be taken or that 1 not
intended to be taken.

R

(101 The use of any false representation or deceplive means to collect or
attempts 1o collect any debt or o abtain information concerning

a
consumer.
dosk ok
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§1692f. Unfair practices

A debt collector may not use unfair or unconscionable means 10 collect or
attempt 1o collect any debt. Withaut limming the general application of the
foregoing. the following conduet is a violation of this section:

(11 The collection of any amoum fincluding any interest. fee, charge. or
cxpense ancidenial 1o the principal oblipation) unless such amouni is
expressly authorized by the agreement creating the debt or permitied by

P

faw.
ER
o2 Persons  enpaced unticensed  collection  acuviries ir wlving Marviand
22 Thons engaged o uniicensed  collection  acuvities  invo ving  Marviand

vonsumers are in violation of BR §7-401(2) of the MCAL 4 (“except as otherwise provided in

this title, & person may not knowingly and w Miuily do business as a collection agency in the
State unless the person has a license™ b Engaging in onlicensed collection activities is aleo a

violabon of CL $14:202(8) of the MCDICA ¢ “Jofn collecting or attiempting 10 colleet an alleged
debt”. a collector may not ~[c]laim attempt. or threaten 1o enloree a right with knowledge that the

nght does not exist™). Unlicensed collection aciivities also violate various provisions of the
FDCPA:D  they constitute false or misleading represeniations in violaion of 13 LS.
Q16920e )2y (false representations about the “character. amount. or legal status of any debt™)
e 5) {~[tjhe threat 1o 1ake any action that cannot le gally be taken or that is not intended 10 be

taken™1 and (e} 10) (“[i}he use of anv false represemation or deceptive means w0 collect ap

attempt 10 collect any debt™y: and they constitute unfair or unconscionable means o collect or

attempt to collect a debt. in violation of 15 U.S.C. $1692(f} 1) (the cellecton of anv amount tha
15 not permitted by law .
23 OCFR issued an Advisory Notice dated Yuly 200 2009, tthe - "Advisory”) which

notified all collection agencies licensed 10 conduct business m Marviand that it was a violation of

Maryland law for them 1o pursue collection actions again t Maryland residents for loans tha
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were made hy unlicensed entities. and that it was a viclation of Maryland law for them o collect
on loans that exceeded permissible interes; rate caps. This notice was also made available 1o the
general public on the Agency's website at

hps wwa diir state, mdd, us dinance gdisories advison 7-0%.shim]

24 The dollowing relevant and credible evidence. obtained pursuart o the

Commissioner's mvestigation. was considered in the 1ssuance of (he summary Order: internet
and e-mail marketing materials by Respondenis: writien communication between Respondem
and Marvland residents. and between Respondent and the Commissioner: public records and
Marviand's lcensing records. and statements by Marvland residemts whe had emered into
agreements with or bad dealings with. Respondents:

i MUON 15 & un'puﬂc.u off-shore company that advenises to residents of

Maryviand (among othersy, its lending services on the mternet at www My CashiNow com. where

it specificalh offers 1o provide “payday leansTh MON is not registered with the Marvland
Department of Assessments and Taxation ("SPDAT)
b, PDM s a purporied off-shore compam that advertises 1o residents of

Maryvland tamong others). its lending services on the interner ar www PayDavMan com. where is

S,

spectfically offers to provide “pavday loans™. PDM is not registered with SDAT,
c. DAS 15 a purported off-shore company that advertises to residents of

Maryland (among others). its lending services un the internel al Wi DiscountAdvances.o Om.

where it specifically offers to provide “pavday loans™ DA is not re egistered with SDA'T.
d. CPS is a Nevada-based company that is a holding company. owner.

and-or payvment processor of MCN. POM. DAS and CPD. CPS is not licensed as a collection

agency or a consumer lender in Maryland.
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e, CPD is a Nevada-based company that acts as a third-party collection
agency. callecting on defaulted loans on behalt of Respandents MO, PDM. and DAS CPD is
not hicensed as a collection agency in Marvland.

Carey V. Brown is the owner. director, officer. manager. eimplayee andor
agent of MON. PDM. DAS. CPS and CPD.

2 Although MCON. PDM. and DAS purport 1o be located i foreign
countiies, virtually @il of the owners, officers. agents and emplovees of MON. PDM. DAS. CPS
and CPD are located in the state of Tennessee and all essential business operanons. including the
taking of loan applications are conducied v the state of | ennessec,

b Begmning m 2009 and continumng 10 the present day. OCFR hegan
recenving regular complaints related 0 consumer “pavday” loan agreemems inte which
Marytand residents had entered with Respondents.

I QCFR’s investigation revealed that MON engaged in unlicensed pavday
loan fransactions with at least forty-six Marviand residents who obtained pavdasy loans from

Respondents.

1. Pursuant 10 an agreement with Michael Abrenberg {“Consumer 17},
Respondent MON provided a $200 loan to Consumer | on or shout November 15, 2010, 1n
P
exchange for which Consumer 1 was required to payv the principal fus a $33.25 finance charve.
= R F =
for a total payment of $233.25 by December 10, 2010 (25 davs afier Consumer | received the
loan}. This amounted to an annual interest rate of $242 73%, onsumer 1 twice “extendad” this

loan. incurring additional fees totaling $55.86. Consumer | paid off the loan on January 7. 2011,

having paid $289.11 in towal {principal. interest and fees).
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{1 PLU‘Suani woan agreement with Consumer 1. Respondent MON
provided a $400 loan o Consumier 1 on or about January 190 2013 1n exchange for which
Consumer | was required to pav the principal amount plus a $90.44 finance charge. for a ol
pryment of §490 44 by Februan 4, 2011 (17 davs after Consumer | received the loan). This
amounted 1o an unnual interest rate of 485 43%, Consumer 1 ~extended” this s loan four times and
meurred additional fees totaling $223 44, Consumer | } pard off the loan on April 12011, havin 18
paid 5713.88 in 1otal (principal. interest and fees)

¢} Pursuani 1o an agreement with Consumer 1. Respondent MCON
provided a $600 Joan 1 Consumer 1 on or about April 6. 2011 in exchange for which Consumer
! was required 10 pav the principal amount plus a $137.6% fpance charge. for a towl pavment of

§737.0

Ly

by Aprtd 200 2011 (23 days afier Cansumer | received the loan), This amounied 0 an
annual interest rale of 64.07% Consumer | ~extended™ this loan jour times. Incurring
additional fees totaling $409.64. Consumer | ceased pavment on the loan on June 24, 2011 after
having paid $411.09 1n 1oal on this lean.

k. Respondent MON entered into substaniially sinﬁlm loan agreement with

Consumers 2 through 45 and 69 as identified on Attachment A

L OCFR’s investigation revealed that Respondent PDM  enca 2ged  In

unlicensed pavday loan transactions with at least 17 Marvland residents who obtained payday
loans trom Respondents.

m. Pursuant 1o an agreement with Loretta Jones Alexander (“Consumer 467y
PDM provided a $300 loan to Consumer 46 on or about November 22. 2010, in exchange for
which Consumer 46 was required to pay the principal amaunt plus a $27.93 finance charge. for &

total pavment of $327.93 by December 1, 2010 (9 davs after Consumer 46 received the loan).

T
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This amounted 10 an annual interest rate of 377.37%  Consumer 46 “exiended” this loan twice.

incurring addivional fees towlin

U '«7

$208.81. Consumer 46 paid off the loan on February . 2011,
having pard $536.74 in total

11y Pursuant 1o an agreement with Consumer 46, Respondemt PDM
provided 2 3480 Joan 1w Consumer 46 on or about February 7. 2011 in exchange for which
Consumer 46 was required io pay the principal amouni plus a $139.60 finance charge. for a towl
payment of $693.60 by March 1. 2011 (22 davs after Consumer 46 received the loan). This
amounted W an annual terest rate of S51.65%,. Consumer 46 “extended” this loan one ume.
meurring addional fees wrialing $134.06 Consumer 46 paid off the loan on March 23, 2011
having pard 773 i wital,

(i1} Pursuant to an agreement with Consumer 46, PDM provided a $480
foan 1o Consumer 46 an or about May 9. 2011 in exchange for which Consumier 46 w vas required
o pay the principal amount plus a $165.98 finance charge. for & 1otal payment of $645 98 by
Marchn 1. 2011 (23 days after Consumer 46 received the loan). This amounted to an annual
interest rate of 348.76%. Consumer 46 ceased making pavments on this loan in June 2017,

. Respondent PDM entered into substantially similar loan agreements with

Consumers 18. 30. 38 and 47 through 39, as identifled on Attachment A,

:‘

o OCFR™ investigation revealed that Respondent DAS engaged im
unlicensed payday loan transacuions with at least 12 Marviand residents who obtained pavday
loans from Respondents.

p. Pursuant to an agreement with lJennifer Butler (“Consumer 7).

Respondent DAS provided a $180 loan 1o Consumer 5 on or abowt October 6. 2009, in exchange

for which Consumer S was required to pay the principal amount plus a $34.88 finance charge. for
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a total payment of $214.88. by November 6, 2009 (31 days after Consumer 3 received the loan ).
This amounted (o an annual interest rate of 228.16%. Consumer 5 “exiended” the loar one time
imcurning additional fees 1ol $27.10. Consumer 3 paid off the loan of November 20. 2000
having pard $241.98 in total Consumer S°s account has since been sold or assigned io
Respondent CPD. which has made atiemps 1o collect this debt from Consumer 3.

q. Respondent DAS entered into substanually similar loan agreements with
Consumers 18, 31,32, 35, and 39 throuch 66, as identified on Attachment A

r. All of these Maryland consumers applied for their loans from Respondents
by completing and submitung on-line loan apphications while (hese consumers were located in
Marviand (and thus the loans originaied in Marytand).

25, Respondents” transactions with Consumer 1-66 constituted “loans” under CL §12-
301{e). and thus the Respondents and all of their consumer loans 1o Marvland consamers are
subject 1o ti;e MCLL. which the Commissioner is charged with enforcing.

26, Respondents are not ficensed by the State of Marvland o make consumer loans.,
nor are thev exempt from licensing under MCLL. As such. Respondents’ unlicensed consumer
lending activities .in Marvland viclate the licensing provisions of the MCLL cited above.
ncluding »FI §11-204 and CL §12-302,

27. The loans which Respondents made 1o Consumaers 1-66 involved usurious rates ol
interest. far in excess of the 24% or 33% annual interest rates permitted for these transactions
under CL §12-306(a)6).  As such, Respondents violated numerous provisions of the MCLL,

mcluding. but not limited to. CL §§12-306¢a)-(d). 12-313¢a). 12-314¢a) 12-314(bi1). 10-

3Ty 2L and 12-314(c).
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28, Pursuant to CL §12-314cby 1) as Respondents loans 1o Consumers 1-66 and 1o all
other unnamed Marvland consumers contain & “rate of imerest. charge. discount or other
consideration greater than that autharized by the laws of this Stae”, Respondems’ loans 1o all
Maryland consumers are illegal and unenforceable.  Further. pursuant to CL §12-314(hy2).
Respondents (who are neither licensed nor exempt from licensing). “may not receive or reiuin
any principal. interest. or other compensation with respect to any loan that is unenforceahle
under ihis subsection.” I follows that. not only are Respondens” loans to all Marnviand
consumers unenforceahle. but Respondents are prohibited from collecting the principal amount
of their loans from any of these consumers or from collecung any other money related 10 those
loans (thus these loans are “uncollectable™ ).

29 Respondents’ written agreements with Marvland consumers vialate various other
provisions of the MCLL. including. but not pecessarily limited 1o thev\f’du not mclude the
statements and disclosures required under ('L §12-308(a) and Respondents did not provide
Maryland consumers with receipts for payments as required under CL §12-308(b.

34, Therefore. as Respondents” loans 1o Maryland consumers are all illegal,
unenforceable and uncollectible, any adverse or negative information pertaining 1o these loans
should not be reflected on the credit reports of Marviand consumers for any reason. including.
but not limited 1o for reasons of nonpayment or default. Thus. pursuant o Respondents’ duties
under both Cl. §14-1213 of the CCRAL and §623(ail) of the FCRA. Respondents are
prohibited from submitting any negative information concerning its Joan transactions invalving
Maryland consumers to CRAs, whether reporied directly or through third pam collection

agencies. Purther. pursuant to Respondents” duties under both CL §14-1213 of the CURAL and

§623(a) 21 of the FCRA to correct and update information previously submitted to CRAs,
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Respondents are required 1o take corrective action 1o rectii ify their non-compliance with the credit
reporting laws. including notifving the affected Marviand consumers of their non-compliance. as
well as removing from the credit reports of affected Mar rvland consumers all adverse or negative
information which Respondents or third party collection agencies acting on Respondents” behalf
had previously suomired o CRAS concerni ing the loan transactions that Respondents had entered
into with these Marviand consumers,

Sl According to the Commissioner’s records. al no time relevant 1o the faot set forth
m the Summary Order have the Respondents been licensed by the Commissioner 10 make
consumer loans. Furthermare. Respondenis hay e charged and received interest on loans made

o

pursuant 1o their unlicensed and illegal activits. i excess of the amount permitted by Marviand

lav: and Respondents have violated multiple other provisions of Siate and federal laws.

s

mncluding the Marviand Consumer Loan Law. the Consumer Credit Reporting Agencies Law,

and the federal Fair Credit Reporting Act. all 10 the detriment of Marvland consumers,

()
r.a

QCFR’s 1nvestigation revealed that Respondent CPD engaged in unlicensed
collections activiues against at least 27 Marviand residens.
33 CPD contacted Kenya Colbert (“Consurmer 771 via email on or about July 16,

2008 1 an attempt W collect on u loan made w Consumer 7 by Respondent MON. That emai)

threatened to repont Consumer 7°s delinguent account to her credit report as well as on the “Tele
I 2

I

Track System. which is used by Cash Advance Loan companies. rental companies. and other
businesses in determining whether or not to approve a oan™
a. On or about July 25, 2008. Respondent CPD again contacted Consumer 7
via email. That email threatened 1o forward Consumer 77s account “for outside representation of
o}

this Jegally binding debt”. and demanded immediate payment.
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b. On or abour July 27. 2008, Respondent CPD sent Consumer 7 a “Siop
Payment Wamning” via email informing Caonsumer 7 that they had been unable 1o debit funds

from her bank account and threatening to ke action o “protect our imteresi.”

34

RES Respondent CPD comacted Tamara Webb (“Consumer 537 via email on or abow

December 200 2010 in an attempt to collect on 2 loan made to Cansumer 53 by Respondemt

PDM. The emall urged Consumer 523 1o contact CPD and make PayIMEnt ATANgements as soon

as possible. The email warned Consumer 33: ~I{ vou fail 10 meet the oblipations outlined above.
vour account may be reviewed for further action. You could be responsible for additional fees.
Only full payment of the debt would prevent further collection actuvity.

2 .

35 Respondent CPD contacted Yvonne Clark-Dixon (~Consumer 617 via emalt on

or about May 18, 2010 1n an attemnpt (o collect on a loan made to Consumer 61 by Respondent
: > F

DAS. The email instructed Consumer 61 to make a payment of $150.59 10 Respondent CPD via

wire 1ransfer by May 28 2010,

36, Respondent CPD made sumilar collection artempts against Consumers 2. 3.5-7.9-

T2 140 200230 3403941, 43,44, 50, 3963, and 67-6Y, a5 identified on Amachment A.

Tad

37 Respondent CPD knew or should have known. based on the Advisory that they
were prohibited from collecting on Joans made by unlicensed lenders to Marvland consumers,
and that they were prohibited from collecting on loans made 1o Marviand consumers which
exceeded Maryland's permissible interest rale caps.

38, Respondent CPD knowingly continued to collect on the loans made by
Respondents MON. PDM and DAS 1o Maryland consumers even after the OCTR issued is

Advisory.
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39, By attempting 1o collect on usurious loans and loans made by unlicensed entities
o Marviand consumers. all of which were unenforceable and uncolle ctible. Respondent CPD

violated various State and federal laws. including but not limited to the following: the MCDCa

e

including CL o §14-202 by claiming. attempting, or threatening to enforce a Tight with

knowledge that the right does not exisiy: the FPOPA mcluding both 15 U.S.C. $1692¢ 1

A
3

making false or misleading representations. based on conduct which involved makir

g false
representations about the character. amount, or legal staius of any debt. and conduct which
imvolved threatening o take any action that cannol lewally be taken or that is not intended 1o he
taken). and 15 US.C. §1692( (by engaging in unfair or uncopscionable means to collect or
attempt 1o collect any debt. based on conduct which involved collecting any amount no
expressly authorized by the agreement, or permitted by law ) and MCAT A including both BR
$7-308a i3 h\ engaging in any illegal or dishonest activities in connection with the
coflection of a consumer claim. namely the above referenced violations of MUDCA and the
FDCPA)L and BR §7-308(a)(3 3111 (b }v;rm\-vbingij\f or neghgently violating the MCDCA in
connection with the collection of a consumer claim),

40, By engaging in unlicensed collecting activinies in Maryland without being duly
licensed by the Agency. Respondent CPD engaged in unlicensed collection agency activities in
violation of BR §7-401 of MCALA. Further, such unlicensed collection activities violated CL
014-202(8) of the MCDCA. as well as 15 US.C §81692(e)21(5). < 10) and 16921111y of the
FDCPA.

41 Pursuant to the Commissioner’s authority to conduct inve stigations under FJ §3 2-
M4 and 11-214. the Commissioner issued an Order ¢ Produce (in comunction with the

-~

Summary Orderyon July 29, 2013, ordering Respondents 10 provide 1o the Commissioner within
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0
1
Ut

s of receipt of the Summary Order & detailed list of al] loan agreement which Respondens
have enmered into with Marvland consumers since January 1. 2006 o include specific
information relative o each consumer's loan transaction with Respondents. Respondents have
not produced the documents required by this Order 1o Produce. and as the specified due date has

passed. Respondents are in violation of FI §82-114 and 11-214,

NOW THEREFORE. having determined that Respondents waived their right 1o

heanny n this matter by failing 10 request 4 hearme with in the time period specified in the

Summary Order. and pursusnt 1o FI §82-115(a). 11-215(b). and FI-3T8(e) SG & 1022680000,

and BR §7-309, it 15 by the Commissioner hereby:
ORDERED that the Summary Order 10 Cease and Desist issued by Maryland

Department of Labor. Licensing and Reunlation. Office of

the Commissioner of Finance

Regulation on July 29. 2013 is emtered as a Final Order of the Commissioner. and Respondents
shall permanently CEASE and DESIST from making unlicensed consumer. insialiment. or any
other loans to Maryland consumers: and that Respondents shall permanently CEASE and
DESIST from collecting or attempting to collect on any loans previously made 1o Maryland
consumers: and that Respondents shall permanenth. CEASE and DESIST from referring any
loan accounts involving Marviand consumers to third party collection agencies: and thar
Respondents shall permanently CEASE and DESIST from reporting any negative or adverse
information to credit reporting agencies concerning anv loan transaction which Respondents
entered inte with Maryland consumers: and that Respondents shall take affmative action 1o
prevent any third party collection agencies. 1o which Respondents previously referred loan

accounts involving Maryland consumers. from reporting any negative or adverse informarion 1w

credit reporting agencies; and that Respondents shall permanently CEASE and DESIST from
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engaging m any collecting activites with Maryland consumers: and that Respondents shall
permanently CEASE and DESIST from engaging directly or indirectly. in the business of
collecting consumer claims from Marviand residents. and from otherwise engaging in the
collection agency business in the Stae of Marviand: and that Respondents shall permanently
CEASE and DESIST from violating the various Maryland statutory provisions referenced
herein.

ORDERED that. pursuant w Tl 82-115(b) and CL § 12-316 and upon caretul
consideration of (1} the seriousness of the Respondents” violations: tii) the lack of pood faith of

Respondents. (iii} the history and nawre of Respondents’ violations: and (ivi the deletenous

X

ffect of Respondents” violations on the public and on the consurner lending. debt callection and

a7}

collection agency businesses, Respondents shall pay 1o the Commissioner a toal civil mone
penalty in the amount of $214,500. which consists of the following I through IV hefow:

L As to MCON and Carey V., Brown

Prohibired Activity  and Penaltyv per e o
. \ J . ‘.I‘ . Number of Vielations | = Penalty
Violation Vielation .

Unlicensed Lending in

- X T : $1.000 46 dd. Consumers : $46.000
Violation of MCLI 3 o |
Charging Unlawiud ! (

Rare af Interest (€L ‘ $ 300 46 Md. Consumers $23.000
H2-306) ’

. C'?mf’mg f{,(}/”b““‘ Fees $ 300 46 Md. Consumers $23.000
(CL 12373 ‘ »

Failure 1o Comply wirh :
o Dury of Lender «CL &]2- b 500 46 Md. Consumers $23.000

! 3 ” 4‘5) /!

Total " $115.000
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I As to PDM and Carey V. Brown

Prohibited Activity  and | Penalty per . . . i
- . P % Number of Violations ' = Pepalty
Violation Violation t :
['nlicensed Lending in Y o ‘ o
L eeTnEd Lenaniy $1.000 17 Md. Consumers , $17.000
iolation of MCULL
Charging Uniowiul R
Rate of Tnierest (0. ; $ 500 17 Md. Consumers $ 8.5300
12306 | '
Charving Prohibited Fees o oo S
e RN e § 500 17 Md, Consumers $ §5.300
(0L E12-313
Fature o Comply wiih
Cthavof Leneder (L $120- S 500 ‘ 17 Md. Consumers § 8.300
ALY,
Total $42.500
i
I Asto DAS and Carev V. Brown
- Prokhibited Activiry  and | Penalty per . .
‘ , .. ,“p ¥ Nuamber of Viglations . =  Penpalty
Viglution Viglation -
{ nlicenved Lending in e . 3 o
e ST S1.000 12 Md. Consumers ‘ $12.000
Violarion of MCLL :
i
Chargmg Unlawiul
Rare of Interest (CL § 300 12 Md. Consumers § 6.000
$12-3064
- Charging Prohibited Fees - . ; L
C ars T Cronnied fees $ 500 12 Md. Consumers § 6.000
ACL 812313 , ‘
Failure 1o Comply with | : i
Durv of Lender (CL §12- 1§ 500 12 Md. Consumers § 6,000
' a3 X '
&) |
Total $30.000
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IV As to CPD and CPS and Carey V. Brown

- Prohibited Activity and | Penalty per

L Number of Violations = Penalty
Fiolafion :

Violation

Unlicensed Collection
Activiny i Fiojarion of $1.000 27 Md. Consumers $27.000
MOALA (BR 7214

And 1t 1s further,

ORDERED Lﬁzn Respondents shall pay o the Commissioner. by cashier's ar certified
check made pavable to the ~Commissioner of Financial Regulation.” the amount of $§214.300
within fifteen (151 davs from the date of this Fipal Order: and it 18 further

ORDERED that. all loan agreements which Respondents entered into with Marviand
consumers described herein. are void and unenforceable (CL S12-314(b)¥ 11 and 11 1s further

ORDERED that. as Respondems MON. PDM. and DAS were neither licensed nor
exempt from licensing. pursuant to CL §12-314(b)(2). Respondents may 1ot retain any principal.
mterest or other compensation with respect to any loans made with Maryland consumers. and
therefore. full refunds of all sums collected from Maryland consumers shall be refunded: and it‘is
further

ORDERED that Respondents shall pay the required monetary award ta those consumers
described herein within 30 days of the date of this Final Order. Respondents shall make payment
by mailing to each consumer a check in the amount specified above via 118, First Class Mai at

the most recent address of that consumer known to the Respondents. 1f the mailing of a pavment

1s returned as undeliverable by the ULS. Posial Service. Respondents shall promptly notify the
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Commissioner in writing for further instruction as to the means of the making of said payment.
Upon the making of the required payvments. the Respondents shall furnish evidence of h having
made the payments to the Consumers by notifying the Commissioner within sixty (60 davs of
the date of this Order. which evidence shall consist of a copy of the front and back of the

cancelled check for each pavment made w cach Consumer: and 11 is further

other required submissions to the Commissioner a1 the Jollowing address: Commissioner ot

Finanaial Regulation. 500 North Calvert Street. Suite 402, Baltimore. Marvland 21202, Aun:

Proccedings Administrator.

Q/f 13 /ﬁé‘/ éé%/’

Date ﬁ\u{x A Kaufman
Commuissioner of Financial Regulation
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Attachment A

Redacted in Full



